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UNITED STATESDISTRICT COURT
NORTHERN DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA
SAN FRANCISCO DIVISION

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE Case Nol4-cv-122\WHA
COMMISSION,

Plaintiff, FINAL JUDGMENT ASTO DEFENDANT
V. STEVEN NEIL

STEVEN NEIL
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The Securities and Exchange Commission having filed a Complaint, and defendant
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Steven Neil (Defendant) having entered a general appearance; consented to thesCourt’
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jurisdiction over Defendant drthe subject matter of this action; consented to entry of this Final
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Judgment without admitting or denying the allegations of the Complaint (except as
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jurisdiction); waived findings of fact and conclusions of law; and waived anytogigpeal
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from this Final Judgment:
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IT IS HEREBY ORDEREDADJUDGED, AND DECHREED that Defendant and

N
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Defendans agents, servants, employees, attorneys, and all persons in active concert or

N
[

participation with them who receive actualtice of this Final Judgment by personal service or

N
N

otherwise are permanently restrained and enjoined from violating, dioectiglirectly,

N
w

Section10(b) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (tBechange Ac¢) [15 U.S.C. § 78j(b)]

N
S

and Rule 10b-5 promulgated thereunder [17 C.F.R. § 240.10b-5], by using any means or

N
(63}

instrumentality of interstate commerce, or of the mails, or of any facilityyohational

N
(o))

securities exchange, in connection with the purchase or sale of any security:

N
~

(@) to employ any dvice, scheme, or artifice to defraud,;

N
o
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(b) to make any untrue statement of a material fact or to omit to state a material fact
necessary in order to make the statements made, in the light of the circumstances
under which they were made, not misleading; or

(© to engage in any act, practice, or course of business which operates or would
operate as a fraud or deceit upon any person.

.

IT IS HEREBY FURTHERORDERED, ADJUDGED, AID DECREEDthat Defendant
and Defendant’s agents, servants, employees, attorneys, and all persons inactkteoc
participation with them who receive actual notice of this Final Judgment by pessowviak or
otherwise are permanently restrained anpined from violating Sectioh7(a) ofthe Securities
Act of 1933 (the Securities Act”) L5 U.S.C. §&7q(a)] in the offer or sale of any security by
using of any means or instruments of transportation or communication in inteostateice or
by use of the mails, directly or indirectly:”

(@) to employ any device, scheme, or artifice to defraud;

(b) to obtain money or property by means of any untrue statement of a material fact
or any omission of a material fact necessary in order to make the statements
made, in light of the circumstances unddich they were made, not misleading;
or

(© to engage in any transaction, practice, or course of business which operates or
would operate as a fraud or deceit upon the purchaser.

.

IT IS HEREBY FURTHERORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND [ECREEDthat Defendant
andDefendant agents, servants, employees, attorneys, and all persons in active concert or
participation with them who receive actual notice of this Final Judgment by pessowviak or
otherwise are permanentlgstrained andnjoined from violating Sectiob3(b)(5) of the
Exchange Acf15 U.S.C. §8m(b)(5)]by knowingly circumventing a system of internal

accounting controls, failing to implement a system of internal accounting cowoir@dsifying
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any book, record, or account described in Paragraph 2 of Section 13(b) of the Exchange Act
[15 U.S.C. §&78m(b)(3)].
V.

IT IS HEREBY FURTHERORDERED, ADJUDGED, AID DECREEDthat Defendant
andDefendant agents, servants, employees, attorneys, and all persons in active concert or
participation with them who receive actual notice of this Final Judgment by pessowviak or
otherwise are permanently restrained and enjoined from violating Rule I#liBelExchange
Act [17 C.F.R. § 240.13b2-1] by falsifying or causing to be falsified any book, record, or account
subject to Sectio3(b)(2)(A) of the Exchange Act [15 U.S.C78m(b)(3(A)].

V.

IT IS HEREBY FURTHERORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND [ECREEDthat Defendant
andDefendant agents, servants, employees, attorneys, and all persons in active concert or
participation with them who receive actual notice of this Final Judgment by pessowviak or
otherwise are permanentlgstrained and enjoined from violating Rule 13b2-2 [17 C.F.R.

§ 240.13b2-2]directly or indirectly, as an officer or directof an issuer, by—

(@) making or causing to be made a materially false or misleading statenzent

accountantor

(b) omitting to stateor causing another person to omit to state, any material fact

necessary in order to make a statement made, in light of the circumstances under
which such statements areade, not misleadirg
to an accountant in connection with a requaadit or examination of the financial statements
of an issuer, or in connection with the preparation or filing of any document or reporéedeigui
be filedwith the Commissioty the issuer
VI.

IT IS HEREBY FURTHERORDERED, ADJUDGED, AID DECREEDthat Defendant
andDefendant agents, servants, employees, attorneys, and all persons in active concert or
participation with them who receive actual notice of this Final Judgment by pessowviak or

otherwise are permantly restrained and enjoined from violating Rule 13a-14 [17 C.F.R.
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§ 240.13a-14] by signing false or misleading certifications required to be made ptwsuant
Rule 13a-14 of the Exchange Act.
VII.

IT IS FURTHERORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that, pursuant to
Section21(d)(2) of the Exchange Act [15.S.C. 878u(d)(2)], Defendant is prohibited, fiwe
(5) years following the date of entry of this Final Judgment, from acting asiaearadf director
of any isser that has a class of securitregistered pursuant to Section 12 of the Exchange Act
[15 U.S.C. 8§ 78 or that is required to file reports pursuant to Section 15(d) of the Exchange Act
[15 U.S.C. § 780(d)].

VIII.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DEED that Defendant shall pay a
civil penaltyin the amount of $125,000.00 to the Securities and Exchange Commission pursuant
to Section20(d) of the Securities Act [15 U.S.C. § 77t(d)] 8&ettion21(d) of the Exchage Act
[15 U.S.C. 8§ 78u(d)]. Defendant shall make this payment within 14adteysentry of this Final
Judgment.

Defendant may transmit payment electronically to the Commission, which wilderov
detailed ACH transfer/Fedwire instructions upon requéxyment maylso be maddirectly
from a bank account viday.govthrough the SEC website at http://www.sec.gov/about/offices/
ofm.htm Defendant may also pay by certified check, bank cadshsbeck, or United States
postal money order payable to the Securities and Exchange Commission, which shall be

delivered or mailed to

Enterprise Services Center
Accounts Receivable Branch
6500 South MacArthur Boulevard
Oklahoma City, OK 73169

and shall b accompanied by a letter identifying the case title, civil action number, and hame o
this Court; Steven Neil as a defendant in this action; and specifying that paymekteis

pursuant to this Final Judgment.
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Defendant shall simultaneously transmit fgoopies of evidence of payment and case
identifying information to the Commissincounsel in this action. By making this payment,
Defendant relinquishes all legal and equitable right, title, and interesthrfuswts and no part
of the funds shall be returned to Defendant.

The Commission may enforce the Court’s judgment for the civil penalty by mauing f
civil contempt (and/or through other collection procedures authorized by law) airengfter
14 days following entry of this Final Judgment. Defendant shall pay post judgnezasirdn
any ddéinquent amounts pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1961. The Commission shall hold the funds,
together with any interest and income earned thereon (collectively;ane'y, pending further
order of the Court.

The Commission may propose a plan to distribute the Fund subject to thesCourt’
approval. Such a plan may provide that the Fund shall be distributed pursuarkaw thend
provisions of Section 308(a) of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002. The Counteshil
jurisdiction over the administration of any distribution of the Fulidhe Commission staff
determines that the Fund will not be distributed, the Commission shall send the fignds pa
pursuant to this Final Judgment to the United States Treasury.

Regardless of whether any such Fair Fund distribution is made, amountsl codeee
paid as civil penalties pursuant to this Judgment shall be treated as penalttesipa
government for all purposes, including all tax purposes. To preserve theutetéfect of the
civil penalty, Defendant shall not, after offset or reduction of any award of cwaoey
damages in any Related Investor Action, argue that he is entitled to, nor shiethbelienefit
by, offset or reduction of such compensatory damages award by the amount of ahy part
Defendants payment of a civil penalty in this actidriPgnalty Offséey. If the court in any
Related Investor Action grants such a Penalty Offset, Defendant shiih @0 days after entry
of a final order grating the Penalty Offset, notify the Commissenounsel in this action and
pay the amount of the Penalty Offset to the United States Treasury or td-aifidias the
Commission directs. Such a payment shall not be deemed an additional civil pedahgla

not be deemed to change the amount of the civil penalty imposed in this Judgment. Fospurpose
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of this paragraph, eéRelated Investor Actidrmeans a private damages action brought against
Defendant by or on behalf of one or more investors basedlmstantially the same facts as
alleged in the Complaint in this action.

IX.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DEREEDthat the Consent is
incorporated herein with the same force and effect as if fully set fatimhand that Defendant
shall comply with all of theagreements set forth thereing¢luding, but not limited to, his
agreemento waive and release any and all legal and equitable claims, or any potential ¢auses o
action whatsoever, that relate to, ase out of, any and all of the securities listed in Exhibit A to
the Consent.

X.
IT ISFURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED, KD DECREEDthat this Court shall retain

jurisdiction of this matter for the purposes of enforcing the terms ¢ Final Judgment for five yea

UNITED STAT!S D;STRICT JUDGE

Dated: February 2015




